
Woodbury County Zoning Commission Agenda Page 1 of 1 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY  
ZONING COMMISSION 

 

Monday, July 28, 2025 at 5:00 PM 
 

The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting on Monday, July 28, 2025 at 5:00 PM in the Board 
of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting 
will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public 
meeting and public hearings on the agenda may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the 
Conference ID: 638 086 537# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in 
person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA 

1 CALL TO ORDER  

2 ROLL CALL  

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA (INFORMATION ITEM)  

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING(S) (ACTION ITEM)  

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS 

» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FROM BRUCE SORENSEN 
(APPLICANT) OF THE BRUCE & ROCHELLE SORENSEN LIVING TRUST (OWNER) TO OPERATE A 
BORROW PIT FOR EARTH MATERIALS TO REMOVE A HILL AND CONSTRUCT A DRIVEWAY FOR 
ACCESS TO THE HILLTOP ON PARCEL #894531200004. SUMMARY: Bruce Sorensen, representing the Bruce & 
Rochelle Sorensen Living Trust, has applied for a conditional use permit from Woodbury County, Iowa, to remove a hill and 
construct a driveway for access to the hilltop, enabling future use as farmland or a building site. The project is classified as a 
borrow pit for earth materials under Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. The property is located at 2086 
150th Street, Lawton, IA 51030 on Parcel #894531200004, within T89N R45W (Banner Township), Section 31, NE 1/4, Lot 4 of 
the Ridgeview II Subdivision. It spans 6.42 acres and is situated approximately half a mile northwest of Lawton and six miles east 
of Sioux City. The property is in the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District, where “borrow pits for earth materials” are classified 
as a conditional use under Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, subject to review by the Zoning 
Commission and approval by the Board of Adjustment. 

» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FROM KEVIN HEISS 
(APPLICANT) OF RENT PROPERTIES LLC (OWNER) TO CONSTRUCT AND OPERATE AN OFF-
PREMISE 14’ X 48’ LED BILLBOARD (DOUBLE-SIDED) ON PARCEL #884606100002. SUMMARY: Kevin 
Heiss, representing Rent Properties LLC, has submitted a conditional use permit (CUP) application to construct and operate a 14’ 
x 48’ LED billboard (double-sided) for off-premise advertising. The property is located in the N 2/3 of the N 1/2 of the NW 1/4, 
Section 6, Township 88N, Range 46W (Floyd Township), identified as Parcel 884606100002. It is proposed to be situated along 
the south side of Highway 20 and the east side of Charles Avenue.  The property is in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning 
District, where “off-premise advertising sings (e.g. Billboards)” are classified as a conditional use under Section 3.03.4 and 
Section 5.02.8 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, subject to review by the Zoning Commission and approval by the 
Board of Adjustment. 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA (INFORMATION ITEM)  

7 STAFF UPDATE (INFORMATION ITEM)  

8 COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY (INFORMATION ITEM)  

9 ADJOURN  

 

1



PACKET CONTENTS 

PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): 
FROM BRUCE SORENSEN (APPLICANT) OF THE BRUCE & ROCHELLE 
SORENSEN LIVING TRUST (OWNER) TO OPERATE A BORROW PIT FOR 
EARTH MATERIALS TO REMOVE A HILL AND CONSTRUCT A DRIVEWAY FOR 
ACCESS TO THE HILLTOP ON PARCEL #894531200004. 

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): 
FROM KEVIN HEISS (APPLICANT) OF RENT PROPERTIES LLC (OWNER) TO 
CONSTRUCT AND OPERATE AN OFF-PREMISE 14’ X 48’ LED BILLBOARD 
(DOUBLE-SIDED) ON PARCEL #884606100002. 

3

15

30

2



Woodbury County Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Date: June 23, 2025 
Time: 5:00 PM 
Location: Board of Supervisors' Meeting Room, Basement, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA

MEETING AUDIO: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Zoning Commission “Committee 
Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o   https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=a5z4GlaHc2o 

Attendees 
 Commissioners Present: Chris Zellmer Zant – Chair, Tom Bride – Vice Chair, Steve Corey, Jeff Hanson, Corey 

Meister 
 Staff Present: Dan Priestley – Zoning Coordinator, Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 
 Supervisor(s) Present: Kent Carper 
 Public Attendees: Kevin Heiss, Slater Ohm, Dana Neal (via phone), Lynn Drees (via phone) 

Call to Order 
Chair Chris Zellmer Zant called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. The Chair reviewed the meeting procedures, including the 
audiotaping of the meeting, the preparation of minutes, the request for cell phones to be turned off or set to vibrate, and the 
requirement for attendees to complete the attendance sheet. The Chair also outlined the public hearing procedures, including 
staff reports, applicant presentations, public comments (limited to three minutes per speaker), and the closure of hearings by 
motion and vote. 

Roll Call 
All the commissioners were present. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda (Information Item) 
The Chair inquired if there were any public comments on matters not on the agenda. Seeing and hearing none, the meeting 
proceeded. 

Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting: May 28, 2025 (Special Meeting) (Action Item) 
The Chair asked for any corrections or comments regarding the minutes from the previous meeting on May 28, 2025. 
Hearing none, a motion was entertained. 

 Motion: To approve the minutes from the last meeting of May 28, 2025. 
 Moved by: Tom Bride 
 Seconded by: Corey Meister 
 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." One commissioner (Jeff Hanson) abstained due to absence from the previous meeting. 
 Action: The minutes of the previous meeting were approved. 

5. Items of Business 
a. Public Hearing and Action Item: Consideration of Nuclear Energy Facilities and Nuclear Waste Storage in the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance (Action Item) 

The public hearing was opened with Dan Priestley explaining that this discussion was a continuation from previous months 
(dating back to August/September 2024) regarding the inclusion of nuclear energy facilities, nuclear waste storage, and 
related uses in the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. He highlighted the complexity of the issue, noting the heavy 
involvement of federal (Nuclear Regulatory Commission - NRC) and state regulations. 

Priestley explained that the existing Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance's land use summary table includes "electrical 
energy generation, not including wind," which could be interpreted to include nuclear facilities as a conditional use. However, 
the standard 500-foot public notification distance for conditional use permits was deemed insufficient for nuclear facilities. 
The current proposal extends this notification zone to 10 miles for any conditional use permit process related to nuclear 
energy or waste storage. This proposal utilizes the existing zoning ordinance infrastructure, requiring review by both the 
Zoning Commission and the Board of Adjustment. 

3



Priestley clarified that the Board of Supervisors initiated this process to receive a recommendation from the Zoning 
Commission, with the Supervisors ultimately having up to three public hearings on any final proposal. He noted that public 
input had been collected over several meetings, and while not as extensive as for wind or solar energy, both support and 
opposition comments had been received. 

Priestley presented a "Nuclear Energy Public Comments 2014-2025" document, summarizing past comments, and requested 
it be received into the public record. 

 Motion: To receive the "Nuclear Energy Public Comments 2014-2025" document into the public record. 
 Moved by: Tom Bride 
 Seconded by: Jeff Hanson 
 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." 
 Action: The document was received into the public record. 

Priestley then summarized key public comments: 
 Support: Mayor Bob Scott (Sioux City), Kyle Gates (Secondary Roads), Mayor Ken Bauer (Correctionville), and 

Craig Levine and Rick Plathe (Northwest Iowa Building and Construction Trade Council). 
 Opposition: Jerry Holder (concerns regarding waste risk and potential malfunctions), Janet Kruger (opposing 

nuclear activities, urging prohibition without public approval). 
 Other Comments: Wendy Hess (9/11 Dispatch Center readiness, staff training, emergency exercises, budget 

increases), Mark Nara (former County Engineer, regarding infrastructure impact and NRC alignment), Patty Riesberg 
(clarified NRC's regulatory role). Brian Bergeon from the NRC had also provided details on their independent 
regulatory and licensing process in a previous packet. 

Priestley reiterated that the local conditional use permit process allows for scrutiny and engagement with other levels of 
government, similar to telecommunication towers. He emphasized that the proposed ordinance amendment specifically 
defines "nuclear energy facilities" and "nuclear waste storage" and adds them to the land use summary table only in the 
general industrial zoning district. The 10-mile notification radius is a key added feature. 

The Chair then opened the floor for public comments on this item. 
 Public Comment: No one present in the room wished to comment. 
 Public Comment (via phone): Lynn Drees (phone) from Danbury stated, "no comment." No other callers wished to 

comment. 

The Chair then invited comments from the commissioners. 
 Dan Priestley clarified that this process is proactive, and no specific nuclear project has been proposed or 

approached staff/county. The purpose is to determine if it should be a permitted use in the ordinance. 
 Commissioner Tom Bride reiterated that the current ordinance covers electrical energy generation, but the proposed 

language provides more detail as recommended by the County Attorney's office. 
 Dan Priestley explained that the County Attorney felt the previous language wasn't specific enough and that clearer 

definitions would prevent interpretation issues if an application were submitted. He also stressed the importance of 
the 10-mile notification over the standard 500 feet to avoid potential problems. He noted that the costs of extensive 
notifications for a 10-mile radius would be passed on to the applicant, aligning with the county’s zoning fee schedule 
to prevent massive county expenses for wider-scale conditional uses. 

 Commissioner Jeff Hanson emphasized that defining nuclear energy clarifies the language and expands the 
notification distance, which are important considerations. 

 Dan Priestley reinforced that a conditional use permit is a "maybe" permit, not a "yes," allowing full scrutiny and 
public engagement in the process. He noted the difficulty of discussing hypotheticals without a specific project but 
stressed the importance of having a clear framework in the ordinance for potential future proposals. 

The Chair inquired about the next steps. Dan Priestley explained that the commission could close the public hearing and then 
make a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors or continue the discussion. If a recommendation is sent, the Board of 
Supervisors would then consider scheduling up to three public hearings, which often draw more public engagement. 

 Motion: To close the public hearing. 
 Moved by: Jeff Hanson 
 Seconded by: Corey Meister 
 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." 
 Action: The public hearing was closed. 

4



Commissioner Jeff Hanson commented that this was the 12th time the issue had been heard at various levels. 
 Motion: To recommend to the Board of Supervisors to move forward with the language as presented in draft pages 

11, 12, 13, and 14 of the packet, which specifically defines nuclear energy facilities and nuclear waste storage. 
 Moved by: Jeff Hanson 
 Seconded by: Steve Corey 

Discussion on the motion: 
 Supervisor Kent Carper asked if specific locations were picked out. Dan Priestley clarified that the proposed 

ordinance would only allow these uses in general industrial areas, typically south of the airport and west of 
Interstate 29, not in agricultural or residential zones. 

 Dan Priestley added that the Board of Supervisors has the prerogative to adjust the language during their three 
public hearings, as the Zoning Commission's output is a recommendation. 

 Commissioner Tom Bride clarified that the motion is not targeting new areas but is clarifying language, notification, 
and conditions for existing general industrial zones. He reiterated that the 10-mile notification is a significant 
improvement over 500 feet. 

 Dan Priestley further clarified that both nuclear energy facilities and nuclear waste storage would be distinct, 
classified as conditional uses, and subject to the 10-mile notification apparatus. 

 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." (Unanimous) 
 Action: The commission voted unanimously to recommend to the Board of Supervisors to move forward with the 

proposed language for nuclear energy facilities and nuclear waste storage in the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance. 

b. Public Hearing and Action Item: Consideration of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments for Accessory Dwelling 
Units to Comply with Iowa's Senate File 592 (Action Item) 

The public hearing was opened with Dan Priestley stating this was a housekeeping item to bring the county ordinance into 
compliance with Iowa Senate File 592. This state law, signed by Governor Kim Reynolds on May 1st, mandates that counties 
allow at least one accessory dwelling unit (ADU) on the same lot as a single-family residence, subject to specific conditions, 
and prohibits certain restrictive regulations. 

Priestley explained that the state standard sets a minimum threshold of 1,000 square feet or 50% of the size of the existing 
dwelling, whichever is greater. While the state code allows counties flexibility to permit larger ADUs, the current proposal 
strictly follows the state's minimums. He noted that other jurisdictions (counties and cities) would also be grappling with the 
implications of this new law, particularly concerning wells and septics. He mentioned that the 23-foot minimum dimension for 
a dwelling would still apply for building permits. 

Priestley stated that the staff's recommendation is to simply react to the state standard and keep the minimums, allowing for 
future re-evaluation if demand necessitates larger ADUs. He stressed that the county has a duty to make its ordinance 
compatible with state law. 

The Chair then opened the floor for public comments on this item. 
 Public Comment: No one present in the room wished to comment. 
 Public Comment (via phone): No one wished to comment. 

The Chair then invited comments from the commissioners. 
 Motion: To close the public hearing. 
 Moved by: Tom Bride 
 Seconded by: Jeff Hanson 
 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." 
 Action: The public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Tom Bride commented that there is no alternative but to align with state code. He agreed with Dan Priestley 
that there is no immediate reason to allow larger structures beyond the state's minimums (1,000 sq ft or 50% of the existing 
dwelling). He viewed it as a housekeeping issue, with potential future reviews if needs arise. Other commissioners agreed. 

 Motion: To recommend to the Board of Supervisors the approval of the zoning ordinance text amendments for 
accessory dwelling units in compliance with Senate File 592, as outlined in the draft on pages 48 and 49 of the 
packet. 

 Moved by: Tom Bride 
 Seconded by: Corey Meister 
 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." (Unanimous) 

5



 Action: The commission voted unanimously to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the approval of the zoning 
ordinance text amendments for ADUs, aligning with Senate File 592. 

c. Review of a Conditional Use Permit Application: Kevin Heiss (Applicant) / Rent Properties, LLC (Owner) for an Off-
Premise LED Billboard (Action Item) 

Dan Priestley clarified that this was a review session, not a public hearing, which would take place at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting on July 7th at 5:00 p.m. The Zoning Commission's duty was to review the criteria, evaluate the application, and hear 
from the applicant and potentially the public. 

Kevin Heiss, representing Rent Properties LLC, submitted a conditional use permit application to construct and operate a 14-
foot by 48-foot LED billboard for off-premise advertising. The property is located in the north two-thirds of the north half of the 
northwest quarter, Section 6, Floyd Township, situated along the south side of Highway 20 and east of Charles Avenue, 
within the General Commercial zoning district. Off-premise advertising signs are classified as a conditional use in this district. 

Priestley noted that the property includes a floodplain, and the applicants are aware of the need for a floodplain development 
permit and building permit. He confirmed that initial data suggests the sign would not be in the floodway, which was a 
concern for the Iowa DNR. He reiterated that the county does not regulate content but evaluates the billboard itself, which is 
a two-sided, V-shaped LED billboard. The application addresses criteria such as appropriate zoning, compatibility with 
development plans, and potential adverse effects. 

The Chair invited the applicant to speak. 
 Kevin Heiss (Applicant): Stated the intent is for advertising, including for his own nearby businesses. They are 

working with SRA Group for construction and have ensured the operation will be well-maintained. He believes the 
location is suitable for a highly trafficked commercial area along Highway 20. Heiss confirmed they had consulted 
with Dan Priestley multiple times to ensure compliance with the process. 

Commissioners' questions for the applicant: 
 Distance to Residents: Kevin Heiss stated there are no residents within 1,000 feet, and nearby properties are 

commercial. Dan Priestley confirmed the presence of mixed districts in the area, with some residential properties 
further up the hill (Boatman’s and Amick’s on 162nd Street) that could be about 1,000 feet away. The ordinance 
specifically regulates distance from AE (Agricultural Estates) districts, where housing is expected, but not AP 
(Agricultural Preservation). 

 Lighting and Brightness: Heiss stated it's a 21-millimeter LED product, which is extremely bright during the day to 
overcome the sun but dims at night like a "television night mode." He confirmed the back side of the V-shaped sign 
would be black and not emit light towards residential areas. He emphasized they chose Daktronics, a reputable 
company, to ensure proper design and operation. 

 DOT Requirements: Heiss confirmed compliance with DOT requirements, which require 300 feet between signs, 
whereas Woodbury County's current ordinance requires 1,000 feet. This 1,000-foot county requirement makes 
placement challenging. Heiss and Priestley described a "chasing the result" scenario with DOT, where each wanted 
the other's approval first, but dialogue has been good. 

 Setbacks: Heiss confirmed the sign is set back significantly from Highway 20 and Charles Avenue, likely in the 
middle of his field, approximately 150 feet from the Charles Avenue right-of-way line. 

 Letter of Support: Dan Priestley presented a letter from Jerry and Vernell Steffan, neighbors at 1528 Jewel, stating 
they had "no issues with this request." He identified their property as directly abutting the applicant's property. 

o Motion: To receive the letter from Jerry and Vernell Stefan into the record. 
o Moved by: Tom Bride 
o Seconded by: Corey Meister 
o Vote: All in favor said "Aye." 
o Action: The letter was received into the record. 

Public Comment (via phone): Dana Neal (162nd Street):
 Expressed concern that his home is within 1,000 feet of the proposed sign, despite measurements. His home is also 

45 feet higher than the road. He worried the sign, which will be 25-30 feet off the ground, would shine directly into his 
windows. 

 He stated he and his family built their home on their family farm for a country living experience, avoiding city 
nuisances like streetlights. He noted that he can see an existing billboard a mile away from his deck at night. 

 He feared the double-sided 14x48 billboard would significantly impact his home's value and privacy, similar to how 
LED lights light up a building on a hill nearby. 

6



 He asked if another location farther from homes could be considered. 

Response to Dana Neal's comments: 
 Kevin Heiss acknowledged the difficulty of finding locations due to the 1,000-foot separation requirement from other 

billboards, stating "we're in the middle of the rock." He emphasized the V-shape design focuses light on the road, 
with the back side being black to prevent light spill. 

 Commissioner Corey Meister asked if the entire 67-acre parcel belonged to Heiss, which he confirmed, except for 
where Hobart's is located. 

 Chair Chris Zellmer Zant noted a previous billboard existed near Steffan's property. Heiss confirmed it still exists and 
is in use, but their new sign cannot be placed there due to the 1,000-foot separation rule from other signs across the 
road. 

 Kevin Heiss reiterated that the sign's design is specifically angled to face east and westbound traffic on Highway 20, 
minimizing light towards other directions. He confirmed there would be no additional security lighting. 

 Dana Neal clarified his property location relative to the sign. He expressed concern about the entire "area lit up" at 
night. He requested to see the proposed sign in person and for the opinions of the Boatman’s and Amick’s (other 
residents on 162nd Street) to be considered. 

 Kevin Heiss agreed to have a conversation with Dana Neal to explore design adjustments to help mitigate concerns. 
He expressed a desire to work with the community. 

 Heiss explained that if a variance were granted to reduce the 1,000-foot separation from other signs, they could 
move the billboard closer to Highway 20. This would also benefit residents by lowering the sign and changing its 
angle relative to their homes. 

Discussion on a potential variance: 
 Commissioner Tom Bride asked if a variance could be requested to relocate the sign to a better position to minimize 

impact on residents. 
 Dan Priestley explained that while a variance is a possibility, recent changes to Iowa Code emphasize "practical 

difficulty" over "economic hardship." He cautioned against speculation on the Board of Adjustment's decision and 
stated staff generally avoid recommending variances due to their uncertain outcome. 

 Kevin Heiss stated their primary goal was approval of the current location and that they would consider a variance 
later if needed but wanted conceptual approval first due to cost. 

 Dan Priestley clarified that the Zoning Commission makes a recommendation, and the application will proceed to the 
Board of Adjustment regardless. He suggested a potential contingency for approval contingent on a variance, but 
again, stressed caution. 

 Priestley also asked if the LED signs could be timed to dim or shut off at certain hours (e.g., midnight to 5 AM) to 
mitigate light pollution. Heiss replied that most digital signs are on 24/7 due to advertising sales, and dimming is 
already built in for nighttime, but completely shutting off or further dimming would make them ineffective. 

 Commissioner Bride suggested that the applicant try to address the neighbors' concerns between now and the Board 
of Adjustment meeting on July 7th, perhaps by showing them existing similar signs or providing a visualization of the 
light impact. Heiss agreed to reach out to Dana Neal and share information. 

 Dan Priestley confirmed that letters were sent to properties within the 500-foot threshold (as per the certified abstract 
listing). 

 Heiss mentioned similar V-shaped LED signs at Hamilton and Casey's, by the Arena, and on I-29 near Outback, and 
at Third and Wesley Parkway as examples of what the proposed sign would look like. He also confirmed height 
restrictions are in place (not 35 feet, more like 18 feet off the ground). 

Final comments from commissioners before motion: 
 Commissioner Jeff Hanson stated he had no issue with the proposed location and thought other lit billboards in the 

area were more impactful. He would prefer the sign to be moved further north (closer to Highway 20) to protect future 
commercial development potential, as its current south placement pushes potential development further into 
residential areas. He agreed that moving it north would benefit adjacent landowners. 

 Kevin Heiss reiterated their desire to work with the community and do things "right." 
 Motion: To make a recommendation to the Board of Adjustment to consider the conditional use permit application for 

an off-premise billboard (14 ft x 48 ft), partially identified on the agenda, with a recommendation for approval. 
 Moved by: Jeff Hanson 
 Seconded by: Corey Meister 

Discussion on the motion: 
 Dan Priestley clarified that the recommendation was for approval. 

7



 Commissioner Tom Bride suggested that the letter reflecting the commission's recommendation for approval should 
also include a discussion point for the Board of Adjustment to consider the possibility of a variance to address 
neighbor concerns, and the discussion regarding the benefits of moving the sign closer to Highway 20. Dan Priestley 
confirmed the letter would reflect the recommendation, touch on themes/concerns, and direct the Board of 
Adjustment to the minutes. 

 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." (Unanimous) 
 Action: The commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the conditional use permit application for the 

billboard to the Board of Adjustment, with concerns noted for their consideration regarding potential variances and 
optimal placement. This item will be continued at the Board of Adjustment meeting on July 7th at 5:00 p.m. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
The Chair inquired if there were any public comments on matters not on the agenda. Seeing and hearing none, the meeting 
proceeded. 

Staff Update 
Dan Priestley provided the following updates: 

 Morningside University Conditional Use Permit Ballpark Proposal: The Board of Adjustment tabled this proposal 
at their last meeting for further consideration on July 7th. Public comments from the Zoning Commission and three 
property owners were reiterated at the Board of Adjustment, focusing on traffic, sound, and lighting issues. Jason 
Reynoldson, representing Morningside University, met with Priestley and the County Engineer to discuss traffic flow, 
including potential turning lanes and infrastructure improvements if traffic increases. They are awaiting information 
from Laura Sievers. Morningside University is expected to return on July 7th with further clarity on addressing these 
concerns. 

 Board of Supervisors Updates:
o Borrow Pit: The Board of Supervisors will hold their second public hearing on the borrow pit on June 24th

and the third and final one on July 1st. 

o New Cooperative Rezone: They will have their third and final reading on this rezone on June 24th 

Commissioners’ Comments or Inquiries 
The Chair asked if there were any comments or inquiries from the commissioners. Hearing none, the meeting moved to 
adjournment. 

Adjournment 
 Motion: To adjourn the meeting. 
 Moved by: Corey Meister 
 Seconded by: Jeff Hanson 
 Vote: All in favor said "Aye." 
 Action: The meeting was adjourned at 6:44 PM. 

APPENDIX – RECEIVED INTO THE RECORD 
Please see the content received into the record on the subsequent pages. 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – JULY 24, 2025
APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Bruce Sorensen, representing 

the Bruce & Rochelle 
Sorensen Living Trust

Application Type: Conditional Use
Zoning District: Agricultural Estates (AE)
Total Acres: 6.42
Current Use: Farmland
Proposed Use: Farmland / Potential Building 

Site
Pre-application Meeting: None
Application Date: July 1, 2025
Legal Notice Date: July 24, 2025
Neighbor(s) Notice Date: July 17, 2025
Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

July 14, 2025

Zoning Commission 
Review:

July 28, 2025

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

August 4, 2025

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 894531200004
Township/Range: T89N R45W (Banner 

Township)
Section: 31
Quarter: NE ¼ 
Zoning District: Agricultural Estates (AE)
Floodplain: None
Property 
Address:

2086 150th Street, Lawton, IA 
51030

CONTENTS
Summary
Aerial Map / Site Plan 
Excerpt
Review Requirements
Review Criteria
Application Materials
Legal Notification
Public Comments
Stakeholder Comments
Supporting Information

APPLICATON DESCRIPTION
Bruce Sorensen, representing the Bruce & Rochelle Sorensen Living Trust, has applied for a conditional use permit from Woodbury County, Iowa, to 
remove a hill and construct a driveway for access to the hilltop, enabling future use as farmland or a building site. The project is classified as a 
borrow pit for earthen materials under Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. The property is located at 2086 150th Street, 
Lawton, IA 51030 on Parcel #894531200004, in the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District, within T89N R45W (Banner Township), Section 31, NE 
1/4, Lot 4 of the Ridgeview II Subdivision. It spans 6.42 acres and is situated approximately half a mile northwest of Lawton and six miles east of 
Sioux City.

AERIAL MAP SITE PLAN EXCERPT

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

Remove hill to create a proper driveway to site, per county engineer need to have access at top of hill. Future use will be farmland or bldg 
site.

15



2 

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 

Applicant response: no structures or improvements on site. Level hill top. No drawing needed. 

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 

I am currently not asking for any bldg permit. My conditional use is removing dirt for site. I need a driveway that is safe & county needs the 
snow trap removed. I will not be affecting others property with drainage when dirt is removed. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The proposed borrow pit is explicitly authorized as a conditional use in the AE Zoning District under Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance. The applicant’s intent to remove earthen materials to construct a driveway aligns with the definition of a borrow 
pit. The response addresses a key condition by asserting that drainage will not impact adjacent properties, which is critical for compliance. 

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
I will not be building anything on the property. The current use is farmland. All I am doing is creating a better driveway situation for safety. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance aims to promote orderly development, protect agricultural land, and ensure public safety. The 
general plan prioritizes maintaining rural character and supporting agricultural uses in the AE District. The applicant’s proposal to maintain 
the property’s agricultural use while improving access aligns with these goals. Enhancing driveway safety addresses public safety 
objectives, and the removal of a snow trap could benefit county maintenance efforts, harmonizing with community welfare standards.  

(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf ) 

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 
I am leveling an unusable hill that can only be used for AG purposes. However access safety is a concern & the best way for a good 
driveway is to remove the hill. I have already received a permit from the county for a driveway but there is for more dirt than I can 
personally use. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The property is in a rural, agricultural area, and the proposed borrow pit is unlikely to significantly alter the neighborhood’s character, 
which is predominantly farmland. The applicant’s focus on safety improvements (driveway access) supports public welfare. The response 
implies minimal impact on adjacent properties, as the project is confined to the applicant’s land and along the county right-of-way.  

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 
I am not designing a development or changing the use of the property. It will not effect any neighboring property just giving me an access 
at the top of the hill. While removing dirt this is all done along the county right of way. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The project's compatibility with the neighborhood depends on its small footprint and temporary nature. The applicant claims that the 
project is limited to their property and the county right-of-way, indicating minimal disruption to surrounding areas. However, at least four 
nearby homes will be affected by the borrow pit in some capacity. Given that this is a temporary project, along with the rural setting and 
the small scale of the borrow pit (which is intended to support a single driveway), it aligns with the low-density, agricultural character of the 
AE District. The potential impacts can be managed through a defined timeline and a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). 

16



3 

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 
No new services are being requested. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

In a rural AE District, essential public facilities (e.g., roads, emergency services) are typically limited, and borrow pits generally require 
minimal infrastructure. The applicant’s response confirms that the project does not demand additional services, such as water, sewer, or 
utilities, which aligns with the ordinance’s requirement. The existing county road (150th Street) and previously approved driveway permit 
suggest adequate access for the project. Emergency services, such as fire or police, are unlikely to be strained by a small-scale borrow 
pit. The response fully addresses this criterion, as no evidence suggests the project will overburden public facilities. 

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 

I believe the removal of this hill will improve snow removal for the county as well as giving me a safety driveway access.

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The ordinance requires protection of natural, scenic, or historic features, but the applicant describes the hill as agriculturally limited and a 
snow trap, implying minimal natural or scenic value.  

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The applicant’s project addresses public interest by improving driveway safety and removing a snow trap, which enhances county snow 
removal efficiency. Safe access to the property benefits the applicant and potentially emergency services, contributing to community 
welfare. While the project primarily serves the applicant’s needs, the snow removal benefit extends to the public, making it desirable. The 
small scale and rural location ensure the project’s necessity is contextually appropriate without overextending public resources. 

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The applicant describes this as a project with no buildings or development, only earth removal along the county right-of-way. The lack of 
proposed structures or landscaping aligns with the project’s minimal scope. Potential effects (e.g., dust, noise, erosion) from borrow pit 
operations are not addressed, and no mention of screening or site restoration is made. While the project’s scope may limit the need for 
extensive mitigation, basic measures (e.g., dust control, erosion barriers) would demonstrate compliance.  

OVERALL ANALYSIS: 
The conditional use permit application for a borrow pit at 2086 150th Street presents a project with clear objectives: improving driveway safety, 
enhancing safety, and removing a snow trap, and enabling future agricultural or residential use. The temporary nature of the project aligns with the 
ordinance’s consideration of borrow pits as conditional uses (Section 3.03.4). The applicant’s responses demonstrate compliance with most criteria, 
with strengths in minimal public service demands (Criterion 5) and public interest (Other Consideration 1). Key benefits include enhanced safety and 
county maintenance efficiency, which support community welfare. 

Recommendation: Approve the conditional use permit with conditions requiring the applicant to: 
1. Submit an operational plan detailing haul routes, hours of operation, dust control, and noise mitigation. 
2. Submit a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and implement erosion control and site reclamation measures to minimize 

environmental impact. 
3. Comply with all county and state regulations for borrow pit operations including the submission of copies to the county of the NPDES #2 

Permit from the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR). 

With these conditions, the project is likely to meet the ordinance’s standards and contribute positively to the property and community while protecting 
neighboring properties and the environment.

17



4 

APPLICATION

18



5 19



6 20



7 21



8 22



9

SITE PLAN

23



10

LEGAL NOTIFICATION FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC HEARING

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Property Owners within 500 Feet: 6

Notification Letter Date: July 17, 2025

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: August 4, 2025

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
Bruce and Rochelle Sorensen, 
Trustees of the Bruce and 
Rochelle Sorensen Living Trust 
dated 03/13/12

6701 Correctionville Rd Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

J.D.R. Revocable Trust 2068 150th Street Lawton IA 51030 No comments.
Bruce and Rochelle Sorensen 
Living Trust

6701 Correctionville Rd Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Mark S. Lofton, or his Successor, 
as Trustee of the Mark S. Lofton 
Revocable Trust

2058 150th Street Lawton IA 51030 No comments.

Tim John Hummel, Sr. and Debbie 
Ann Hummel, Trustees of the Tim 
John Hummel, Sr. and Debbie Ann 
Hummel Trust

2052 150th Street Lawton IA 51030 No comments. 

Douglas and Michelle Marks PO Box 13 Lawton IA 51030-09768 No comments.
Ann L. Mrla, Trustee of the Ann L. 
Mrla Revocable Trust dated 7/3/96

2429 Hwy 20 Lawton IA 51030-9799 No comments. 

Bruce and Rochelle Sorensen, 
Trustees of the Bruce and 
Rochelle Sorensen Living Trust 
dated 03/13/12

6701 Correctionville Rd Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this Conditional Use Permit. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 

7/14/25. 
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.

24



11

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No issues. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 7/14/25.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this request. – Neil Stockfleth, 7/14/25

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments.

PICTOMETRY 

25



12 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

26



13 

ZONING MAP

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

27



14

ELEVATION MAP

SOIL AND ELEVATION MAP

28



15 29



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

REVISED PRELIMINARY REPORT FOR FOLLOW UP MEETINGS – JULY 23, 2025
APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Kevin Heiss/Rent Properties

LLC
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit
Zoning District: General Commercial (GC)
Total Acres: 67.25
Current Use: Agricultural / Vacant Land
Proposed Use: Installation of a 14’ x 48’ LED 

billboard for off-premise
Pre-application Meeting: May 22, 2025
Application Date: May 27, 2025
Legal Notice Date: June 21, 2025, July 24, 2025
Neighbor(s) Notice Date: June 19, 2025, July 17, 2025
Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

June 5, 2025, July 17, 2025

Zoning Commission 
Review:

June 23, 2025, July 28, 2025

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

July 7, 2025, August 4, 2025

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 884606100002
Township/Range: T88N R46W (Floyd Township)
Section: 6
Quarter: N 2/3 of the N 1/2 of the NW 1/4
Zoning District: General Commercial (GC)
Floodplain: Yes. Zone A
Property 
Address:

No address

CONTENTS
Summary
Aerial Map / Site Plan 
Excerpt
Review Requirements
Review Criteria
Application Materials
Legal Notification
Public Comments
Stakeholder Comments
Supporting Information

SUMMARY
Rent Properties LLC, represented by Kevin Heiss, has submitted a conditional use permit (CUP) application to construct and operate a 14' x 48' LED 
billboard for off-premise advertising. The proposed location is in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, along the south side of Highway 20 and the 
east side of Charles Avenue, specifically in the N 2/3 of the N 1/2 of the NW 1/4, Section 6, Township 88N, Range 46W (Floyd Township), identified as 
Parcel 884606100002. As off-premise advertising signs, such as billboards, are classified as a conditional use under Section 3.03.4 and Section 5.02.8 of 
the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, the application is subject to review by the Zoning Commission and approval by the Board of Adjustment. The 
proposal was properly advertised, with notices published in the Sioux City Journal's legal section on June 19, 21 and July 24, 2025, and letters sent to 
neighbors within 500 feet on June 19, 2025 and July 17, 2025. Relevant stakeholders, including government agencies, utilities, and organizations, were also 
invited to provide comments. On June 23, 2025, the Zoning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval, as detailed in their findings and 
recommendation statement included withing this packet. On July 7, 2025, the Board of Adjustment considered the CUP application. During the public 
hearing, the applicant and staff presented information, while members of the public, including Dana Neal and Jeremy Boatman, expressed concerns about 
the potential lighting impact of the billboard on their properties. After deliberating on the applicant's compliance with regulations and the concerns raised by 
neighbors, the Board weighed options to approve, table, or deny the application. Ultimately, the Board voted unanimously to table the application, allowing 
the applicant to explore alternative locations within the same parcel and file a variance application to reduce setbacks from existing billboards and the AE 
Zoning District. This decision aimed to balance the applicant's needs with neighbor concerns about lighting, while maintaining due process and avoiding 
excessive delays. The agenda item is being returned to the Zoning Commission as a courtesy, allowing them to additionally review the updated conditional 
use and review the proposed locations as requested in the applicant's variance application. A subsequent public hearing before the Board of Adjustment is 
scheduled for August 4, 2025, at their 5:00 p.m. meeting, where the application will be reconsidered in light of any additional information or 
recommendations received from the Zoning Commission.

AERIAL MAP

30



2 31



3 32



4 33



5 34



6 35



7 36



8 37



9 38



10 39



11 40



12 41



13 42



14 43



15 44



16 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Overview 
The applicant seeks a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an LED billboard in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District along Highway 
20, Woodbury County. The proposal can comply with the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan, by meeting the 
six criteria and two additional considerations for conditional use approval. On July 7, 2025, the Board of Adjustment considered the CUP 
application. During the public hearing, the applicant and staff presented information, while members of the public, including Dana Neal 
and Jeremy Boatman, expressed concerns about the potential lighting impact of the billboard on their properties. After deliberating on the 
applicant's compliance with regulations and the concerns raised by neighbors, the Board weighed options to approve, table, or deny the 
application. Ultimately, the Board voted unanimously to table the application, allowing the applicant to explore alternative locations within 
the same parcel and file a variance application to reduce setbacks from existing billboards and the AE Zoning District. This decision aimed 
to balance the applicant's needs with neighbor concerns about lighting, while maintaining due process and avoiding excessive delays. 
The agenda item is being returned to the Zoning Commission for their July 28, 2025 meeting as a courtesy, allowing them to additionally 
review the updated conditional use and review the proposed locations as requested in the applicant's variance application. A subsequent 
public hearing before the Board of Adjustment is scheduled for August 4, 2025, at their 5:00 p.m. meeting, where the application will be 
reconsidered in light of any additional information or recommendations received from the Zoning Commission. 

Criteria Analysis 
1. Authorization in Zoning District: The billboard is a permitted conditional use in the GC Zoning District, adhering to spacing 

(1,000 feet from other billboards and AE zones), setback, and structural standards. However, the proposed locations 2 and 3 
would require the execution of a variance by the Board of Adjustment. 

2. Harmony with Ordinance and General Plan: The billboard aligns with the county’s commercial development goals along 
Highway 20, supporting economic growth and maintaining land use compatibility. 

3. Adverse Effects: The billboard, set back from the highway and 1,000 feet from other billboards/AE zones, poses minimal impact 
on traffic, parking, utilities, or neighborhood character. Minimal electrical service is required, and LED lighting glare mitigation is 
recommended. The alternative locations likely mitigate concerns as refenced by the neighbors. 

4. Compatibility with Neighborhood: The two-sided billboard’s design and placement match the commercial corridor’s character, 
with a standard 14’ x 48’ size and no interference with adjacent properties or future development. Floodplain requirements will be 
met through administrative processes. 

5. Public Facilities and Services: The billboard requires only minimal electrical service, and no water, sewer, or public access, 
ensuring adequate infrastructure support. 

6. Natural, Scenic, or Historic Features: The cleared parcel has no significant features, and minimal ground disturbance ensures 
limited environmental impact. Floodplain compliance can be addressed administratively. 

Additional Considerations 
1. Public Interest: The billboard supports local business advertising, enhancing economic activity along Highway 20 without 

detracting from neighborhood welfare. 
2. Minimizing Adverse Effects: The site plan includes setbacks, spacing, and minimal landscape disturbance reduce impacts. 

Additional screening is unnecessary due to the commercial context, though lighting glare should be considered. 

Additional Notes 
The ordinance does not prohibit V-shaped or multi-faced billboards, consistent with other sign regulations. Conditions on billboard design 
could be addressed during the CUP process. 

Recommendation 
Contingent upon information obtained and carefully evaluated from the public following the Board of Adjustment public hearing, the 
application appears that it could be approved including at any of the proposed locations as per the variance if the board finds that a 
variance is applicable. The proposal appears to align with zoning requirements with the exception of locations 2 and 3 which require a 
variance. This project could be construed to support public interest through advertising economic benefits. 

The following includes the draft minutes from the Board of Adjustment’s July 7, 2025, public hearing on the matter. 

45



17 46



18 47



19 48



20 49



21 50



22 51



23 52



24 53



25

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

The proposed conditional use is the installation and operation of a 14-foot by 48-foot off-premise, double-sided LED billboard. The 
structure will be used for digital advertising visible from Highway 20, providing marketing opportunities for local businesses and services. 
The billboard will be constructed to meet county ordinance requirements, including setback and spacing standards, and will utilize minimal 
power with downward-facing LED lighting to reduce glare and light pollution. The sign will be programmed for appropriate content display 
duration as per county guidelines and located on privately owned commercial-zoned land.

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

SEE REVISED MAPPING INCLUDED IN THE VARIANCE SECTION BELOW

PROPOSED LOCATIONS 2, 3, AND 1 RELATIVE TO THE GENERAL FLOODPLAIN. (NOT SCIENTIFIC)

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
The LED board is an authorized conditional use in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, as per the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance. This parcel is zoned GC, and the proposed billboard conforms to the standards and permitted conditional uses within this 
zoning classification and certain commercial districts. This parcel is located on Highway 20 and adjacent to other parcels with an existing 
billboard across the road. The application follows the required spacing standards, setbacks, and structure regulations as seen in county 
ordinance. We plan to stay 1000ft from the original billboard as well as 1000ft from the AE zone that is to the Northwest of the property.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance (Sec. 5.02.8) permits off-premise signs, such as billboards, as conditional uses in the GC 
Zoning District, subject to specific standards. The applicant’s assertion that the billboard meets spacing (1,000 feet from other billboards 
and AE zones), setbacks, and structural requirements aligns with ordinance standards as the site plan appears to include these distances. 

54



26 

The site plan appears to indicate that the billboard maintained 1,000-foot spacing from other billboards and AE zones. The proposed 
alternative locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the Board of Adjustment.   

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
This project aligns with the county’s future land use goals by placing signage along a major highway corridor, which supports local 
economic development while preserving compatibility with land use. This parcel is currently zoned General Commercial (GC), and the 
proposed use aligns with its current zoning designation and intended commercial development along Highway 20.  

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The Woodbury County General Plan encourages commercial development along major corridors like Highway 20 to foster economic growth while 
preserving land use compatibility. The GC Zoning District is intended for commercial activities, and the proposed billboard aligns with this purpose by 
providing advertising opportunities that support local businesses. The site’s location along Highway 20, a high-traffic corridor, is consistent with the plan’s 
emphasis on visible commercial development. The applicant’s response adequately demonstrates harmony with the ordinance and general plan, as the 
use complements the commercial character of the area without conflicting with land use objectives. 

(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf ) 

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 
The billboard is setback over 280 feet from the highway and more than 1,000 feet from any other billboard or AE-zoned lot, as shown in 
the attached site plan. Its placement makes sure that visibility, traffic safety, and neighborhood character are not negatively impacted. 
There will be no parking, public access, or utilities required on-site beyond minimal electrical service for the LED lighting, further 
minimizing disruption to the surrounding properties. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The site plan appears to confirm the billboard’s setback from Highway 20, which exceeds the setback requirement of 50 FT from the right-
of-way line. The 1,000-foot spacing from other billboards and AE zones complies with ordinance standards, reducing visual clutter and 
potential land use conflicts. The lack of parking or public access eliminates concerns about traffic or parking impacts. The minimal 
electrical service requirement poses little strain on utility infrastructure. The billboard’s placement in a commercially zoned area with 
existing billboards nearby suggests it will not alter the neighborhood’s character. The LED lighting should include measures to reduce or 
avoid glare, but the applicant’s response indicates no significant adverse effects, satisfying this criterion. The proposed alternative 
locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the Board of Adjustment.   

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 
The parcel is around other large agricultural and commercial parcels, including an existing billboard to the east. The design, scale, and 
orientation of the sign match the existing conditions. Its placement maintains visual and operational consistency with surrounding 
development and does not hurt future use or development of adjacent land. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The proposed alternative locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the Board of Adjustment. The parcel is in a commercially 
zoned area along Highway 20, adjacent to agricultural and commercial properties. The presence of an existing billboard nearby supports 
the applicant’s claim that the proposed billboard is consistent with the area’s visual and operational character. The 14’ x 48’ size is 
standard for off-premise signs and does not appear disproportionate to the surroundings. The billboard’s placement avoids encroachment 
on adjacent properties, and its minimal footprint ensures no interference with future development. The response demonstrates 
compatibility with the neighborhood, meeting this criterion. The property is within the floodplain but the applicant can satisfy the floodplain 
requirements through the administrative process by not placing the sign within the floodway and following the floodplain development 
permitting process through the county zoning department.  

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 
The billboard will require no water, sewer, or public access. Minimal electrical service for LED lighting will be installed per code and utility 
provider standards. As such, existing infrastructure is more than adequate for the proposed use. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The proposed use has negligible demands on public infrastructure, requiring only electrical service for LED lighting. The applicant’s 
commitment to install this service per code ensures compliance with utility standards. The absence of water, sewer, or access needs 

55



27 

eliminates concerns about infrastructure capacity. There appears to be no physical constraints that would prevent electrical service 
installation. This criterion is clearly satisfied, as existing facilities are more than adequate for the minimal requirements. The proposed 
alternative locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the Board of Adjustment.   

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 

There are no historic, scenic, or environmentally sensitive features located on this parcel. The sign has been placed with ample spacing 
from nearby lots and with minimal disturbance to the natural landscape. The site is cleared, owned by the applicant, and does not 
encroach on any floodplain, protected area, or sensitive habitat.

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The parcel is a cleared, commercially zoned lot with no apparent natural, scenic, or historic features. The applicant’s assertion that the 
site avoids protected areas, or sensitive habitats is plausible, given its location in a developed commercial corridor. As noted, the property 
is within the floodplain but the applicant can satisfy the floodplain requirements through the administrative process by not placing the sign 
within the floodway and following the floodplain development permitting process through the county zoning department. The minimal 
ground disturbance required for billboard installation supports the claim of limited environmental impact. The proposed alternative 
locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the Board of Adjustment.   

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The proposed billboard serves the public interest by providing advertising space for local businesses, which supports economic activity 
along Highway 20. Its location in a commercial corridor enhances visibility for commercial services, contributing to the community’s 
economic welfare. The minimal infrastructure demands and compliance with zoning standards ensure it does not detract from the 
neighborhood’s welfare. While not a critical public facility, the billboard’s economic benefits align with the ordinance’s intent to foster 
commercial development, satisfying this consideration. The proposed alternative locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the 
Board of Adjustment.   

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The site plan demonstrates efforts to minimize adverse effects through setback from Highway 20 and 1,000-foot spacing from other 
billboards and AE zones, reducing visual and safety impacts. The applicant’s commitment to minimal landscape disturbance and 
compliance with electrical codes further mitigates effects. Given the commercial context and existing billboards, additional screening may 
not be necessary. Overall, the design and placement sufficiently minimizes adverse effects, meeting this consideration. The Board should 
consider questioning potential glare or lighting issues. The proposed alternative locations 2 and 3 would require a variance through the 
Board of Adjustment.   

OVERALL ANALYSIS: 

The CUP application for the LED billboard can meet compliance with the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance’s criteria and considerations for all 
three locations but Locations 2 and 3 would require a variance from the Board of Adjustment. The proposed use is authorized in the GC Zoning 
District, aligns with the general plan’s commercial development goals, and likely poses minimal adverse effects on traffic, utilities, or neighborhood 
character. The billboard’s design and placement strive for compatibility with the commercial corridor, and its minimal infrastructure needs are easily 
met by existing services. The billboard contributes to economic welfare by supporting local advertising. Additionally, after seeking counsel with the 
county attorney office, it was agreed that the ordinance does not prohibit v-shaped or multiple faced billboards. The shape or number of faces of a 
billboard could be something that could be addressed in the course of the conditional use process (i.e. a specific condition could potentially be 
placed in the CUP related to those items). Counsel also noted that the other regulations in the ordinance pertaining to signs, e.g. ground signs, do 
not specify the number of faces and those often are front and back. Thus, the interpretation for billboards would be consistent with the way the 
ordinance has been applied to other types of signs.  

Recommendation: Contingent upon information obtained and carefully evaluated from the public following the Board of Adjustment public hearing, 
the application appears that it could be approved including at any of the proposed locations as per the variance if the board finds that a variance is 
applicable. The proposal appears to align with zoning requirements and could be construed to support public interest through advertising economic 
benefits.

56



28

Excerpt from Section 5.02.8 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.

57



29 

APPLICATION

58



30 59



31 60



32 61



33 62



34 63



35 64



36 

SITE PLAN & SEPARATION DISTANCES (SEE REVISED BELOW WITH THE VARIANCE 
APPLICATION) 

65



37 66



38 67



39 68



40 69



41 70



42 71



43 72



44 73



45 

APPLICATION

74



46 75



47 76



48 

SITE PLAN & SEPARATION DISTANCES 

77



49 78



50 79



51

PROPOSED LOCATIONS 2, 3, AND 1 RELATIVE TO THE GENERAL FLOODPLAIN. (NOT SCIENTIFIC)

The image above is not scientific nor intended to represent a survey or exact location. Only provided for general 
informational purposes relative to the general floodway location.

LOCATON 2 – RELATIVE TO THE GENERAL FLOODWAY LOCATION. (NOT SCIENTIFIC)

The image above is not scientific nor intended to represent a survey or exact location. Only provided for general 
informational purposes relative to the general floodway location.

LOCATON 3 – RELATIVE TO THE GENERAL FLOODWAY LOCATION. (NOT SCIENTIFIC)

The image above is not scientific nor intended to represent a survey or exact location. Only provided for general 
informational purposes relative to the general floodway location.

LOCATON 1 – Relative to the general floodway location. (Not Scientific)

The image above is not scientific nor intended to represent a survey or exact location. Only provided for general 
informational purposes relative to the general floodway location.

80



52 

BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION 

81



53 82



54 83



55 

FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION 

84



56 85



57 86



58 87



59 88



60 89



61 90



62 91



63 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC HEARING

92



64

LEGAL NOTIFICATION FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT SECOND PUBLIC HEARING

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Property Owners within 500 Feet: 14

Notification Letter Date: June 19, 2025, July 17, 2025

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment X 2

Public Hearing Date: July 7, 2025 at 5:00 PM and August 4, 2025 at 5:00 PM

Phone Inquiries: 1 (Jerry Steffan)

Written Inquiries/Comments: 1 (Jerry & Vernell Steffan)

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
Rent Properties, LLC 204 Buckeye Circle Lawton IA 51030 No written comments.
Strachan Realty Company, LLC 1820 Hwy 20 Lawton IA 51030 No written comments.
Jerry E. Steffen & Vernell D. Steffen, 
Co-Trustees and their successors in 
Trust under the Jerry and Vernell 
Steffen Revocable Trust dated 9-3-
2008

1528 Jewel Ave Moville IA 51039 SEE LETTER BELOW 

George F. Seubert & Mary Jane 
Seubert, as Trustees of the George 
E. and Mary Jane Seubert 
Revocable Trust dated 7-31-2023

2087 210th Street Bronson IA 51007-8021 No written comments.

Charles Claude Neal, Life Estate 
interest with remainder to Everett 
Dean Neal and an undivided 1/2 
interest to Everett Dean Neal and 
an undivided 1/2 interest to Lois 
Jeanette Deringer, Trustee of the 
Lois Jeanette Deringer Revocable 
Trust, under Agreement dated 
March 28, 2005

1637 Charles Ave Lawton IA 51030-9727 No written comments.

AVE-PLP Properties, LLC, a Kansas 
limited liability company

58668 190th Street Pacific Junction IA 51561 No written comments.

Todd Shumansky & Tara 
Shumansky, husband and wife, as 
joint tenants with full rights of 
survivorship

1275 Buchanan Ave Sioux City IA 51108 No written comments. 

RJ Tide Construction, Inc., an Iowa 
corporation

1821 Hwy 20 Lawton IA 51030 No written comments. 

H & H Real Estate, LLC, an Iowa 
limited liability company

1624 180th Street Sioux City IA 51106 No written comments. 

Michael Pagan & Terri Pagan, 
husband and wife, as joint tenants 
with full rights of survivorship

1589 Charles Ave Lawton IA 51030 No written comments. 

Midwest Auto Properties, LLC, an 
Iowa limited liability company

1901 Hwy 20 Lawton IA 51030 No written comments. 

Brian D. Peterson, a married person 1739 Charles Ave Lawton IA 51030 No written comments.
An undivided 1/2 interest to 
Everett Dean Neal & an undivided 
1/2interest to Lois Jeanette 
Deringer, Trustee of the Lois 
Jeanette Deringer Revocable Trust, 
under Agreement dated March 28, 
2005

1637 Charles Ave Lawton IA 51030-9727 No written comments.

Dana D. Neal & Kimberly A. Neal, 
husband and wife, as joint tenants 
with full rights of survivorship

1774 162nd Street Lawton IA 51030 No written comments. 

Rent Properties, LLC 204 Buckeye Circle Lawton IA 51030 No written comments.

93



65

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the proposed zoning variance for MEC electric, and we have no conflicts.  The 

requestor should be made aware that any requested relocation or extension of distribution facilities 
will be subject to a customer contribution. – Casey Meinen, 7/17/25. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this Conditional Use Permit application. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff 

Zettel, 6/5/25. 
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this application. – Neil Stockfleth, 6/5/25.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments.

94



66

PICTOMETRY 

95



67 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

96



68 97



69

ZONING MAP

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

98



70

ESTIMATED FLOODWAY MAP

LOCATION MAPPING RELATIVE TO FLOODWAY (NOT SCIENTIFIC)

The image above is not scientific nor intended to represent a survey or exact location. Only provided for general 
informational purposes relative to the general floodway location.

99



71

ELEVATION MAP

SOIL MAP AND REPORT

100



72 101



73 102



74 103



75 104



76 105




